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QUESTIONS and ANSWERS to RFP 2016 -010 
 
Question # 1. Section-2, page-9: Event Matrix Confirmation:  January 19, 2016 is listed as the 
completion date with February 2, 2016 contract completion. Please note that our past 
experience for a project with the requested tasks and work scope of this magnitude typically 
takes 12 to 18 months to complete. Is the State in a position to extend the completion date 
beyond the stated three (3) months? 
 
Answer # 1: There is a misprint in the Schedule of Events tables Section 2. The contract 
completion date is February 2, 2016 as described in Section 1.2, page 8 Contract Term second 
paragraph. The deadline to provide the final deliverables to the NH DOS project manager’s 
office will be 4:00 PM on February 2, 2016. 
 
 
Question # 2. Section-4.3, page-12; 1st paragraph:  Non-Mandatory Vendor Conference Call 
makes reference to a Vendor Conference Call as identified in Section-2.  The matrix provided 
no date and time for this conference call. 
 
Answer # 2: This section was inadvertently left in the document. There are no requirements for 
vendors to attend a Vendor Conference Call at this time. Respondents are advised to disregard 
Section-4.3, Vendor Conference Call, page 12 all paragraphs. 
 
 
Question # 3. Section-6.5, page-21: Vendor Staff:   Is the State requesting that the engineering 
consultant be resident full time in the Project Office? 
 
Answer # 3:  To clarify Section-6.5, page-21: Vendor Staff. There is a small grammar error in 
the first sentence. The State is requesting the selected consultant to serve as the Engineering 
Consultant to the NHCommNet Radio Project Office. There is no expectation for the selected 
engineering consultant to occupy office space in the NH DOS offices. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Question # 4. Section-7.3, page-31; end of last paragraph:  It appears that there are missing 
roles and responsibility line items. 
 
Answer # 4:  There is a misprint involving Section 7 Specific Qualifications. Paragraph 7.3 is 
mislabeled and should be considered a continuation of paragraph 7.2 Project Management 
Experience following the words “but not limited to”.  
 
 
Question # 5. Section C-1, page 34, Scope of Work – 2nd paragraph:  The RFP portion related 
to the FirstNet work indicates review of public and private assets from NHSP, DOT, DRED, 911 
etc. What additional assets will be reviewed? How many sites are anticipated for review? 
 
Answer # 5:  To clarify Section C-1, page 34, Scope of Work – 2nd paragraph:, The selected 
consultant resulting from this RFP is directed to compile infrastructure data that will be used to 
provide the deliverables described in paragraph 1.2 Desired Project Outcome and Table 3-C 
Deliverables Vendor Response Checklist. The State will assist the effort by providing previously 
collected data pertaining to the approximately forty five (45) LMR and Microwave 
communications assets contained within the existing statewide communications infrastructure 
equipment and facilities. The selected consultant is directed in the Scope of Work to investigate 
additional assets throughout the state that may exist in the state which would further enhance 
the existing statewide New Hampshire State Police communications capabilities. There is no 
definitive anticipated number of sites required to be reviewed.   
 
 
Question # 6. Appendix-C-1, page-35: Objective – Bullets 6 and 7:  Please provide additional 
details and the State’s expectations with regard to: 
§  Scope of statewide licensing and frequency management 
§  Scope of consolidation of dispatch infrastructure 
 
Answer # 6: To clarify Appendix-C-1, page-35: Objective – Bullets 6 and 7:  Regarding Bullet 6,  
Scope of statewide licensing and frequency management, the intent of this bullet is to ensure 
the communications implementation effort includes providing the state the means to acquire and 
manage required Federal Communications Commission Station Authorizations for the LMR and 
Microwave systems. Regarding Bullet 7, Scope of consolidation of dispatch infrastructure, the 
intent of this bullet is to have the consultant assess and provide the state recommendations 
regarding the potential for consolidation of the current multiple-location dispatch center 
operations to enhance statewide interoperability.  
 
 
Question # 7. Appendix-C-1, page-36:   a) Requirements: Please describe specific scope that 
would be required by the consultant to assess IT security requirements.  b) C-3 Deliverables: 
Shall the non-software deliverable be interpreted as a face-to-face meeting? 
 
Answer # 7:  To clarify Appendix-C-1, page-36:   a) Requirements: Please describe specific 
scope that would be required by the consultant to assess IT security requirements. The State is 
expecting the consultant to assess the current IT security systems in operation and provide a 
budget conscious recommendation for an integrated multiple layer cyber-security solution based 
on an IP protocol closed/private network with consideration for future integration into the 
FirstNet NPSBN and b) C-3 Deliverables: Shall the non-software deliverable be interpreted as a 
face-to-face meeting?  Non-software deliverables should interpreted as a face-to-face meetings 
with written documentation support provided where appropriate.  



Question # 8. General Questions:  a) Will the State be accepting proposals from radio system 
manufacturers and/or radio equipment providers?  b) Who will the Consultant report to at the 
State?  c) Is there an official project name for the RFP 2016-01 project ?  d) The RFP requires 
two (2) new RFPs to be developed.  One for the NHSP VHF network and one for FirstNet. Will 
the Consultant be responsible for assisting the State with evaluating the responses and 
implementation supervision? 
 
 
Answer # 8: Clarification of General Questions:   
 
a) Will the State be accepting proposals from radio system manufacturers and/or radio 
equipment providers?  Please refer to page 34, C-1 Scope of Work, paragraphs 1 and 3. The 
State desires to contract with a single company who is capable of supplying an engineering 
consultant that possesses the necessary skills and knowledge to provide the deliverables stated 
in the RFP document. Potential respondents are advised to review Appendix E: Standards for 
describing Vendor Qualifications in order to ensure they meet the stated qualifications for 
participation in this project. Particular attention to E-1.5 Prior Project Descriptions on page 39 is 
recommended. 
 
b) Who will the Consultant report to at the State? The engineering consultant will report to the 
RFP 2016-01 Project Manager Captain Chris Wagner, NHSP Support Services Bureau, or his 
designee.  
 
 
c) Is there an official project name for the RFP 2016-01 project?  The official project name for 
the RFP 2016-01 project is “RFP # 2016-01”. The project will be unofficially referred to as the 
“NHCommNet” project.  
 
 
d) The RFP requires two (2) new RFPs to be developed. One for the NHSP VHF network and 
one for FirstNet. Will the Consultant be responsible for assisting the State with evaluating the 
responses and implementation supervision? The selected consultant will not be responsible for 
assisting the State with evaluating the responses and implementation supervision of the New 
Hampshire State Police VHF network RFP and FirstNet 700 MHz LTE network RFP unless 
(emphasis added) the State requests additional services from the selected Vendor as described 
in Table F-2 Vendor Rates/Pricing Worksheet.  
 
 
August 5, 2015  
 
SUBMITTED : 
 
Captain Chris Wagner 
NH Department of Safety 
Support Services Bureau 
33 Hazen Drive 
Concord, NH 03305 
(603) 223-8660 


